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gS;fn, sf7df8f}+

afx«f} jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL ;"rgf

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?,
o; dGbflsgL xfO8«f]kfj/ ln=sf] ldlt @)*@÷)*÷@* ut] ck/fGx $M)) ah] b]vL ;fFem %M)) ah] ;Dd a;]sf] ;+rfns 
;ldltsf] a}7ssf] lg0f{ofg';f/ o; dGbflsgL xfO8«f]kfj/ lnld6]8sf] afx|f}+] jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef lgDg ldlt, :yfg, / 
;dodf lgDg ljifox? pk/ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{o ug{ ;+rfng x'g] ePsf] x'Fbf sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf ^& cg';f/ 
;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?sf] hfgsf/L tyf pkl:ytLsf nflu of] ;"rgf k|sfl;t ul/Psf] 5 .

!= ;ef x'g] ldlt, :yfg tyf ;do M 

ldltM @)*@ k''if @( ut] d+unaf/ tbg';f/ -January 13, 2026_

:yfgM ;""""o{ Sof6l/ª P08 kf6L{ Kofn];, w''Daf/fxL, cfgGbdfu{ sf7df08f} . 

;doM lbpF;f] !M#) ah] .

@= 5nkmnsf ljifox?M
s_ ;fdfGo k|:tfjx?,

!_	 ;+rfns ;ldltsf tkm{jf6 cWoIfHo"n] k]z ug'{ x'g] o; sDkgLsf] cf= j= @)*!÷@)*@ sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg pk/ 
5nkmn ul/ kfl/t ug]{,

@_	n]vfkl/Ifssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxt @)*@ cfiff9 d;fGtsf] jf;nft, ;f]xL ldltdf ;dfKt cf= j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] gfkmf 
gf]S;fg lx;fj, z]o/ k"FhLdf ePsf] kl/jt{g, gub k|jfx ljj/0f nufot ;f] ;Fu ;Dj4 cGo cg';"rLx? pk/ 
5nkmn ul/ kfl/t ug]{, 

#_	o; sDkgLsf] cf= j= @)*@÷)*# sf] jflif{s lx;fasf] n]vfkl/If0f ug{ sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf !!! jdf]lhd 
n]vfkl/Ifssf] lgo'lQm ug]{ tyf lghsf] kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f ug]{,

$_ sDkgLdf l/Qm /x]sf] ;+rfns kb ! df ul/Psf] ;+rfnssf] lgo'lQmnfO{ cg'df]bg ug]{ .

v_ ljz]if k|:tfjx?M

!_	lgofds lgsfojf6 xsk|b z]o/ :jLs[t eP cg';f/ ul/Psf] z]o/ k"FhLsf] ;dfof]hgnfO{ cg'df]bg ug]{, 

@_	o; sDkgLsf] lgodfjnLsf] lgod #! -!_ df ;+zf]wg ug]{,

#_	sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf !)% -!_ -v_ cg'?k sDkgLsf] r'Qmf kF"hL / k|mL l/he{ eGbf j9L x'g] ul/ a}+s;Fu 
shf{ lng ;+rfns ;ldltnfO{ clVtof/L k|bfg ug]{ tyf o; cg'?k eP u/]sf sfo{x?sf] cg'df]bg ug]{ af/],

$_	cl3Nnf] jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef kZrft\ cyf{t cf= j= @)*!÷)*@ df z]o/sf] ?kdf ljleGg sDkgLdf ul/Psf] 
nufgLnfO{ cg'df]bg ug]{ ;DaGwdf, 

%_	o; sDkgLn] ;j]{If0f cg'dlt kq lnPsf] tfkvf]nf h=lj=cf= -*=&@$ d]=jf=_ nfO{ cuf8L a9fpg cfjZos kg]{ ;xfos 
sDkgL -Subsidiary Company_ btf{ ul/ kl/of]hgf ljsf; tyf lgdf{0f ;DaGwL sfo{ cuf8L a9fpg], sDkgLsf] 
lxt clej[4L x'g] ul/ cGo pko'Qm sDkgLx?sf] z]o/df nufgL ug]{ nufotsf sfo{ ug{ sDkgLsf] ;+rfns 
;ldltnfO{ clVtof/L k|bfg ug]{,

^_	pk/f]Qm k|:tfjx? sfof{Gjog ug]{ qmddf lgofds lgsfojf6 s'g} km]/jbn, yk36 jf ;+zf]wg ug{ lgb]{zg k|fKt 
ePdf ;f]xL adf]lhd km]/jbn yk36 jf ;+zf]wg ug{ ;+rfns ;ldltnfO{ cfjZos clVtof/L k|bfg ug]{, 
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;+rfns ;ldltsf] cf1fn]
sDkgL ;lrj

	 u_	 ljljw .

#= ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL ;fdfGo hfgsf/Lx? M

!_	!@ cf}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef k|of]hgsf nflu ldlt @)*@÷)(÷!( ut] ! -Ps_ lbg sDkgLsf] z]o/wgL btf{ lstfa aGb 
ul/g]5 . g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh lnld6]8df ldlt @)*@÷)(÷!* ut] ;Dd sf/f]jf/ eO{ l;l8P; P08 lSnol/Ë ln=af6 
/fkm;fkm ePsf] / sDkgLsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ Unf]an cfO{PdO Soflk6n ln=sf] clen]vdf btf{ ePsf z]o/wgLx? ;f] 
;efdf efu lng of]Uo x'g] 5g\ .

@_ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?sf] pkl:ytL k'l:tsfdf b:tvt ug{ z]o/wgL pkl:ytL k'l:tsf laxfg !!M)) ah] b]vL ;ef 
;+rfng /x];Dd v'Nnf ul/g]5 .

#_	aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng cfpg'x'g] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?n] cfgf] kl/ro v'Ng] sfuhft tyf lxtu|fxL vftf 
vf]ln z]o/ cef}lts/0f ul/Psf] ljj/0f b]lvg] DEMAT Account Statement jf z]o/ k|df0f kq ;fydf lnO{ cfpg' x'g 
cg'/f]w ub{5f}+, cGoyf ;efsIf leq k|j]z ug{ kfOg] 5}g . 

$_ ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?sf] hfgsf/Lsf nflu cfly{s ljj/0f nufotsf aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf k]z x'g] ;Dk"0f{ 
k|:tfjx? tyf ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL hfgsf/Lsf] nflu sDkgLsf] Website: https://www.mandakinihydro.com.np df 
x]g{ ;Sg' x'g]5 .  

%_	;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lngsf nflu k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo'Qm ug{ rfxg] z]o/wgLx?n] k|rlnt sDkgL sfg'gn] tf]s]sf] 
9fFrfdf k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ kmf/fd e/L] ;ef ;'? x'g' eGbf $* 306f cufj} cyf{t ldlt @)*@÷)(÷@& ut] lbp;f] !M#) 
ah] leq sDkgLsf] /lhi68{ sfof{no gS;fn sf7df8f}+df btf{ u/fO{ ;Sg' kg]{]5 . Ps eGbf al9 JolQmnfO{ k|f]S;L lbg 
kfOg] 5}g, o;/L lbOPsf] kfOPdf pQm k|f]S;L ab/ x'g]5 .

^_	k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo'Qm ul/;s]kl5 ;DaGwLt z]o/wgLn] k|f]S;L km]/abn ug{ rfx]df o; cl3 lbOPsf] k|f]S;L ab/ u/L 
of] k|f]S;LnfO{ dfGotf lbOof]; eGg] 5'§} kq ;lxt k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ kmf/fd e/L] ;ef ;'? x'g' eGbf $* 306f cufj} 
sDkgLsf] /lhi68{ sfof{no gS;fn sf7df08f}df btf{ u/fPsf] cj:yfdf k'/fgf] k|f]S;L :jtM ab/ ePsf] dflg kl5Nnf] 
k|f]S;LnfO{ dfGotf lbOg] 5 . k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/] kZrft\ z]o/wgL :jo+ ;efdf pkl:yt eO{ xflh/L k'l:tsfdf x:tfIf/ 
u/]df lghn] lbPsf] k|f]S;L :jtM ab/ x'g]5 .

&_	gfafns z]o/wgLx?sf] tkm{af6 sDkgLsf] z]o/wgL btf{ lstfadf ;+/Ifssf] gfddf btf{ ePsf dxfg'efjn] ;efdf efu 
lng jf dtbfg ug{ jf k|]fS;L lgo'Qm ug{ ;Sg]5g\ .

*_	Ps eGbf al9 JolQmx?sf] ;+o'Qm gfddf z]o/ btf{ /x]s]f cj:yfdf ;j{ ;DdtLaf6 k|ltlglw rog ul/Psf] Ps hgfn] 
dfq jf z]o/wgL btf{ lstfafdf klxnf] gfdf pNn]v ePsf] JolQmn] ;efdf efu lng ;Sg]5g\ .

(_	;fwf/0f ;efdf cfgf] dGtJo /fVg rfxg] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?n] ;ef ;'? x'g' eGbf cufj} cfgf] gfd sDkgLsf] 
cflwsf/L k|ltlglw÷sDkgL ;lrjnfO{ l6kfpg' kg]{5 .
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k|f]S;L kmf/d 
>L ;~rfns ;ldlt,
dGbflsgL xfO8«f]kfj/ lnld6]8 
sf=d=g=kf= $, gS;fn, sf7df8f}+, g]kfn 

ljifoM k|ltlglw lgo'Qm u/]sf] af/] . 
dxfzo, 
======================== lhNnf =================== d=g=kf=÷pk d=g=kf=÷g=kf=÷ uf=kf= j8f g+= ====== a:g] 
d÷xfdL =================================== n] To; sDkgLsf] z]o/jfnfsf] x}l;otn] lj=;+=@)*@ ;fn kf}if 
dlxgf @( ut] d+unaf/sf lbg x'g] ;fwf/0f ;efdf :jo+ pkl:yt eO{ 5nkmn tyf lg0f{odf ;xefuL 
x'g g;Sg] ePsf]n] pQm ;efdf d]/f]÷xfd|f] tkm{af6 efu lng tyf dtbfg ug{sf] nflu 
======================== lhNnf =================== d=g=kf=÷pk d=g=kf=÷g=kf=÷ uf=kf= j8f g+= ======  a:g] 
lgDg adf]lhdsf z]o/wgLnfO{ d]/f]÷xfd|f÷k|ltlglw dgf]lgt u/L k7fPsf] 5'÷5f} . 

Kf|ltlgwL lgo'Qm ePsf] z]o/wgLsf] Kf|ltlgwL lgo'Qm ug]{ z]o/wgLsf]  
gfd M  gfdM = = = = = = = = = = = = = 
7]ufgf M 7]ufgfM
z]o/wgL g+= z]o/wgL g+= 
x:tfIf/ gd'gfM x:tfIf/ gd'gfM 

z]o/ ;+Vof M
b|i6Jo M of] k|f]S;L kmf/d ;fwf/0f ;ef x'g' eGbf slDtdf $* 306f cufj} cyf{t\ ldlt @)*@÷)(÷@& 
ut] lbpF;f] !M#) ah] cufj} sDkgLsf] /lhi68{ sfof{nodf k]z u/L ;Sg' kg]{5 . 

k|j]z kq 
z]o/wgLsf] gfd M =================================================================================
z]o/wgL g+= =================================================
z]o/ ;+Vof ===============================
dGbflsgL xfO8«f]kjf/ lnld6]8sf] ldlt @)*@÷)(÷@( df ;DkGg afx|f} aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt 
x'g hf/L ul/Psf] k|j]z–kq . 

============================================ 
z]o/wgLsf] x:tfIf/

============================================ 
sDkgLsf] ;lrjsf] b:tvt tyf 

sDkgLsf] 5fk 
b|i6Jo M !_ vfnL :yfg z]o/wgL cfkm}n] eg'{xf]nf . 

@_ ;efsIfdf k|j]z ug{ of] k|j]z–kq clgjfo{ ?kdf lnO{ cfpg'x'g cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ . 



d

Annual Report 2081/0824    

Mandakini Hydropower Ltd.
dGbflsgL xfO8«f]kfj/ lnld6]8

 sDkgLsf] kl/ro
o; sDkgL k|rlnt sfg'g adf]lhd @)^$ ;fn sflt{s @^ ut] sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{nodf k|f= ln= 
sDkgLsf] ?kdf btf{ e} ldlt @)&! cfiff9 #! ut] b]lv klAns sDkgLdf kl/0ft ePsf] o; sDkgLn] 
sf:sL lhNnfsf] df5fk'R5|] ufpFkflnsf eP/ jUg] ;fbL{vf]nfdf $=)) d]ufjf6sf] ;fbL{vf]nf  hn ljB't 
cfof]hgf lgdf{0f ;DkGg u/L @)&$ dfu{ @$ ut]b]lv Jofkfl/s pTkfbg ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . o;} ul/ ;f]xL 
;fbL{vf]nfdf @=( d]ufjf6sf] dflyNnf] ;fbL{vf]nf hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] Ohfht kq lnO{ ;f] cfof]hgfsf] 
IEE ;DkGg u/L Detailed Feasibility Study (DFS) u/L Generation Licence ;d]t k|fKt u/L ;s]sf] tyf 
Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) ;DkGg u/L NMB a}+s ;Fu Financial Closure ;d]t ePsf] tyf xfn 
pQm cfof]hgf lgdf{0f r/0fdf /x]sf] / cfufdL jif{ leq d} ;DkGg ug]{ nIo /flvPsf] hfgsf/L u/fpg    
rfxG5' . o;} ul/ vf]6fª lhNnfsf] tfk vf]nfdf *=&@$ d]ufjf6sf] gofF hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] ljB't 
ljsf; ljefuaf6 ljB't pTkfbgsf] ;j]{If0f cg'dlt kq k|fKt ul/ Feasibility cWoog eO{ /x]sf] 5 . 

o; sDkgLsf] d'Vo p2]Zox?  M 

o; sDkgLsf] k|aGwkqsf] bkmf $ df pNn]v ul/P adf]lhd o; sDkgLsf] d'Vo p2]Zo b]xfo adf]lhd 
/x]sf] 5 M 
-s_  hnljB't cfof]hgfx?sf] cWoog cg';Gwfg u/L pko'Qm ljljw df]8nx? ckgfO{ g]kfnsf ljleGg 

efudf /x]sf glb, vf]nfgfnf, tfnx?af6 lghL If]qdf hnljB't pTKffbg, k|zf/0f tyf ljlqm ljt/0f 
ug]{ u/fpg] Pj+ cfjZostf cg';f/ kfj/ xfp;, k|zf/0f tyf ljt/0f nfOg lgdf{0f ug]{ / ;+rfng 
ug]{ .

-v_  ljB't phf{sf] cfjZostf cg';f/ g]kfn e/ hnljB't afx]s cGo ;f}o{, jfo', tflko cfbL >f]taf6 
klg j}sNkLs phf{ pTkfbg u/L, k|zf/0f tyf ljlqm ljt/0f ug]{ .

-u_  hnljB't / jftfj/0f ljsf;sf] If]qdf k/fdz{ ;]jf k|bfg ug]{, gofF gofF hnljB't cfof]hgfx?sf] 
;j]{If0f, cGj]if0f, cWoog, cg'udg, tyf d'Nof°g u/L k|ltj]bg tof/ ug]{ / hnljB't If]qsf] ljsfz 
ug]{, u/fpg] .

-3_  hnljB't / phf{ ljsfz ug]{ lznl;nfdf x'g] jftfj/l0fo kIfnfO{ dWogh/ /fvL jftfj/0f cg';Gwfg 
/ ljgfznfO{ /f]syfd ug]{ pkfo cjnDag ug]{ .

-ª_  ;fgf, demf}nf / 7'nf hnljB't cfof]hgf;Fu ;dGjo u/L ljljw pkfo÷df]8]n ckgfO{ ljB't cfk'lt{ 
tyf ljt/0f ug]{ .

-r_  hnljB't, vfg]kfgL, zx/Lljsfz tyf l;len cfof]hgfx?sf] k'j{ ;DefJotf, ;DefJotf, j[xt cWoog 
ljsfz tyf lgdf{0f ug]{ .

-5_  ;fgf tyf demf}nf ljB't cfof]hgfx?sf] lgdf{0f / jftfj/0f ;DaGwL k/fdz{ ;]jf pknAw u/fpg] .

z]o/ k"“hLsf] ;+/rgf M

-s_ o; sDkgLsf] clws[t k"FhL ¿=@,)),)),)),)))÷— -cIf]?kL b'O{ c/a dfq_ /x]sf] 5 . h;nfO{ k|lt 
z]o/ c+lst d"No ¿=!))÷— sf b/n] hDdf @)),)),)))÷— -b'O{ s/f]8_ lsQf ;fwf/0f z]o/df ljefhg 
ul/Psf] 5 .

-v_ sDkgLn] tTsfn hf/L ug]{ k"FhL ¿=!,)&,^!,(!,##%=#) -cIf]?kL Ps c/a ;ft s/f]8 Ps;7\7L nfv 
PsfgAa] xhf/ tLg ;o k}tL; ?k}+of tL; k};f dfq_ x'g]5 .

-u_ sDkgLsf] tTsfn r'Qmf ug{ sa'n u/]sf] k"FhL ¿=^$,^&,^&,)*% -cIf]?kL rf};7\7L s/f]8 ;t;7\7L 
nfv ;t;7\7L xhf/ krf;L ?k}+of dfq_ x'g]5 .
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cWoIfsf] dGtJo

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx¿, 

o; dGbflsgL xfO8«f]kfj/ lnld6]8sf] afx«f} jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, 
cltly dxfg'efjx?, lgofds lgsfosf k|ltlgwHo""x?, sDkgLsf sd{rf/Lx? nufot pkl:yt ;Dk"0f{ 
dxfg'efjx?nfO{ ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf d]/f] JolQmut tkm{ af6 o; pkl:ytLsf nfuL xflb{s cfef/ k|s6 
ub{} :jfut tyf clejfbg JoQm ub{5' .

of] k|rlnt sfg'g adf]lhd @)^$ ;fn sflQ{s @^ ut] sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{nodf k|f=ln= sDkgLsf] 
?kdf btf{ e} ldlt @)&! cfiff9 #! ut] b]lv klAns sDkgLdf kl/0ft ePsf] sDkgL xf] . o; sDkgLn] 
sf:sL lhNnfsf] df5fk"R5|]« ufpFkflnsf lar ;flb{vf]nfdf hnljB't cfof]hgf -$ d]ufjf6_ lgdf{0f ;DkGg 
u/L @)&$ ;fn d+l;/ @# ut] af6 Jofkf/Ls pTkfbg yfngL ul/ /fli6«o k|zf/0f nfO{g dfkm{t g]kfn 
ljB't k|flws/0fnfO{ laqmL lat/0f ul//x]sf] Joxf]/f hfgsf/L u/fpF\b5' .

ut ljutsf jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efx?df z]o/wgLx? af6 k|fKt ;'emfj ;d]tnfO{ dWogh/ ul/, o; sDkgLsf] 
pb]Zo cg''?k sDkgLn] cGo ;fgf tyf dWod :t/sf cfof]hgfx? lgdf{0fdf nfUg] cyjf ;xefuL x'g] 
lglt cg';f/ ljut cfly{s jif{df o; sDkgLsf] Joj;flos bfo/f j[4L ug]{ k|of;x? ul/Psf 5g . h; 
cGtu{t o; sDkgLn] xfn ;+rfng ul/ /x]sf] hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] dfly k6\6L dflyNnf] ;fbL{vf]nf 
hnljB't cfof]hgf -@=( d]=jf_ lgdf{0f sfo{ cuf8L a9fPsf 5f}+ / ;f] cfof]hgf @)*# kf}if d;fGt leq 
;DkGg ul/ Joj;flos pTkfbg z''? ug]{ nIo lnPsf 5f}+ . To;} u/L vf]6f+ª lhNnf l:yt tfkvf]nfdf 
-*=&@$ d]=jf=_ hnljB't cfof]hgf ;+rfng ug]{ u/L ;j]{If0f cg''dlt kq k|fKt u/L yk k|s[ofx? cuf8L 
a9fPsf 5f}+ . ;fy} pQm cfof]hgf lgdf{0fsf] ;DaGwdf :yfgLo nfO{ klg z]o/ ljt/0f ug{ tyf yk nufgL 
klg h'6fpg ;xfhtf k|fKt x'g] ePsf]n] dGbflsgLsf] Subsidiary sDkgL :yfkgf ul/ lgdf{0f sfo{ cuf8L 
a9fpg] of]hgf /x]sf] 5 . ;fy} hnljB't pTkfbgsf b[li6n] nfebfoL 7fgLPsf s]xL cGo cfof]hgfx?df 
klg nufgL cuf8L a9fO Joj;flos bfo/f lj:tf/ ug]{ k|s[of cufl8 a9fOPsf] 5 . h;af6 o; sDkgLsf] 
Joj;flos ;+nUgtf clej[4L x''g] / cfufdL lbgdf cfDbfgL j[4L x''g] ck]Iff lnPsf 5f+} . o; jif{ cGo 
w]/} cfof]hgfx?df af9Lsf] k|efj k/]tf klg o; sDkgLsf] cfof]hgfx?df eg] k|efj gk/]sf] / ;fdfGo 
?kdf ;+rfngdf /x]sf] ;d]t hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5f} . sDkgLsf] k"/fgf] C0f e'QmfgL ug{ / s]xL gofF 
hnljB't cfof]hgfx?df nufgL ug{ xsk|b z]o/ lgisfzgsf] k|s[of cuf8L a9fO{Psf] / s]xL dlxgf leq 
d} ;DalGwt lgsfoaf6 l:js[tL k|fKt x'g] ljZjf; lnPsf 5f} .

cGTodf,
o; sDkgLnfO{ g]kfnsf] dxTjk""0f{ phf{ pTkfbg ug]{ hnljB't sDkgLsf] ?kdf :yflkt / lj:tf/ ug]{  
xfd|f] p2]Zo /x]sf] 5 . sDkgLnfO{ cfhsf] cj:yf;Dd cfO{ k'Ug ;xof]u / ljZjf; ug'{x'g] ;Dk'0f{ z]o/
wgL dxfg'efjx?, lgodgsf/L lgsfox?, g]kfn ;/sf/, k|b]z tyf :yflgo ;/sf/, ;~rf/ hut tyf 
o; sDkgLnfO{ k|ToIf jf ck|ToIf ?kn] ;xof]u k'¥ofpg' x'g] ;Dk'0f{ ;+3;+:yfx? / sDkgLsf nuglzn 
sd{rf/Lx? k|lt xflb{s cfef/ JoQm ub}{ ;a}nfO{ x[bo b]vL g} wGojfb lbg rfxG5' . cfgf] Jo:t ;dosf] 
afjh'b klg o; ;efdf efu lnO{ xfd|f] xf};nf a9fO{ lbg'ePsf]df z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ laz]if wGojfb 
lb+b}+ ;~rfns ;ldlt 4f/f k|:t't k|ltj]bg / k|:tfjx? pk/ 5nkmn u/L cg'df]bg ul/lbg'x'gsf nflu 
xflb{s cg'/f]w ;d]t ub{5' .

									         ;~rfns ;ldltsf tkm{af6
									         z/b s'df/ bfxfn
									         cWoIf

									         ldltM @)*@÷)(÷@(
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dGbflsgL xfO8«f]kfj/ lnld6]8sf]
!@ cf}+ aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef

;+rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 k|:t't jflif{s k|ltj]bg

sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !)( sf] pkbkmf $ adf]lhd ;+rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bg

cfly{s aif{ @)*!÷)*@

;dLIff cjlw / rfn' cf=j=sf] oyfl:ylt af/]df ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?sf] hfgsf/Lsf nflu sDkgL 

P]g @)^# n] lglb{i6 u/] cg'?k b]xfo adf]lhdsf] ljj/0f k]z ul/Psf] 5 .

s_ ljut jif{sf] sf/f]af/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg M 

cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df sDkgLn] u/]sf] cfly{s sf/f]jf/sf] d'Vo ljlQo ljj/0fsf] t'ngfTds cj:yf tyf 

;'rsf°x? lgDg adf]lhd k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 .

qm= ;= laj/0f cf=a=@)*!÷)*@ -?=_  cf=a=@)*)÷)*! -?=_ km/s ?=

! z]o/ k"“hL ^$,^&,^&,)*% ^!,%(,^*,&)) #,)&,(*,#*%

@ hu]8f sf]if $,%*,#%,($^ #,&),#%,#%) **,)),%(^

# shf{ @#,@*,(#,*&( @&,(*,(#,*&( -$,&),)),)))_

$ :yL/ ;DklQ !,!),#!,(%! ^(,@#,&%) $!,)*,@)!
% Rffn' k"FhLut vr{ ;DklQ &),*$,$$,((* &#,@%,&(,$*) -@,$!,#$,$*@_
^ gub tyf a+}s df}Hbft !,!&,**,&%) ^,)%,(&,^(@ -$,**,)*,($@_

& laB't laqmLjf6 k|fKt cfDbfgL !),(!,&^,!$% !),&%,%!,!)% !^,@%,)$)

* v'b d'gfkmf -s/ kl5sf]_ $,@^,@$,%$# #,@$,%#,!#@ !,)!,&!,$!!

( k|lt z]o/ cfDbfgL -¿=_ ^=%( %=@& !=#@

o; sDkgLsf] cf=a= @)*!÷)*@ sf] ljQLo ljj/0f lh= P08 lh= P;f]l;P6\;, rf6{8{ PsfpG6]G6\; åf/f     

n]vfkl/If0f ul/Psf] 5 . sDkgLn] bL3{sflng C0fsf] ?kdf Pg=Pd=la= a}+s lnld6]8, s'df/L a}+s lnld6]8 / 

Unf]an cfOPdO a}+s ln=sf] sG;f]l6{odaf6 C0f lnPsf] / @)*@ cfiff9 d;fGt;Dd hDdf ? @#,@*,(#,*&( 

-cIf/]kL t]O; s/f]8 c7\7fO; nfv lqofgAa] xhf/ cf7 ;o pgfGc:;L dfq_ C0f /x]sf]] 5 .

cf=a= @)*!÷)*@ df ;fbL{ vf]nf hnlaB't cfof]hgf -$ d]ufjf6_ af6 pTkflbt laB't lgDg adf]lhd    
/x]sf] 5 . 

qm=; dlxgf sG6«fofS6 O{ghL{ (Kwh) pTkfbg o'lg6 
(Kwh) /sd

! >fj0f @)*! @,&(*,(@*    @,&$$,*#) !%,@@^,@)&

@ efb« @,&(*,(@* @&,$$,*#)  !$,&^&,!*%=$)

# cflZjg @,&(*,(@*     @%,**,())=#@ !$,$)!,%^)=%*

$ sflt{s @,^&%,!(&      !,(&#,*^) !),^!(,#^^=*)
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% d+l;/ !,%!^,)^%      !,@@!,$#) ^,%&!,@(#=$)

^ kf}if !,!)&,#@!          *%^,^%) *,)^!,)&^=%)

& Dff3 (!@,**^          ^(!,%&) ^,%)&,^&#=&)

* kmfNu'0f ()(,%!)        %(&,$)) %,^@!,%#$

( r}q &(#,!%&          %(!,%!) %,%^^,!)(=!)

!) a}zfv @)*@ (&%,&)@          %*(,%*) #,!&!,($)=$)

!! h]i7 !,^$),*%&          *$#,^%) $,%#*,*^&

!@ cfiff9 @,**(,@!^     @,^@%,$$) !$,!@$,*^&=@)

hDdf @!,*!^,^(%    !*,@$!,)!) !)(,!&&,^%!=)*

-v_ /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o kl/l:yltaf6 sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/nfO{ s'g} c;/ k/]sf] eP ;f] c;/ M

/fli6«o tyf cGt/fli6«o cfly{s tyf ljlQo If]qdf b]vfkg]{ ljleGg c;/x? h:t} d'b|fl:kmtL, j}b]zL d'b|fdf 
x'g] ptf/r9fj, o; sDkgL4f/f ;+rflnt cfof]hgfx?sf] lgoldt tyf cfsl:ds dd{t ;+ef/sf nflu 
oGq, pks/0f nufot lgdf{0f ;fdfu|L cflbdf ePsf] d"Noa[l4n] sDkgLsf] ;+rfng nfut a9\g] ub{5 . 
o:tf] kl/l:ytLsf afjh'b sDkgLn] sf:sL lhNnfsf] df5fk'R5|] ufpFkflnsf eP/ jUg] ;fbL{vf]nfdf $=)) 
d]ufjf6sf] ;fbL{vf]nf hn ljB't cfof]hgf lgdf{0f ;DkGg u/L @)&$ dfu{ @$ ut]b]lv Jofkfl/s pTkfbg 
ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . 

-u_ k|ltj]bg tof/ ePsf] ldlt;Dd rfn' jif{sf] pknlAw / elaiodf ug'{ kg]{ s'/fsf] ;DaGwdf ;+rfns 
;ldltsf] wf/0ff M

o;} ul/ ;f]xL ;fbL{vf]nfdf @=( d]ufjf6sf] dflyNnf] ;fbL{vf]nf hnljB't cfof]hgfsf] Ohfht kq lnO{ 
;f] cfof]hgfsf] IEE ;DkGg u/L Detailed Feasibility Study (DFS) u/L Generation Licence ;d]t k|fKt u/L 
;s]sf] tyf Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) u/L NMB a}+s ;Fu Financial Closure ;d]t ;DkGg e};s]sf]] 
Aoxf]/f hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5f}+ .

pk/f]Qm ;a} k|s[ofx? k'/f ul/P kZrft cGo cfjZos k|s[ofx? k'/f ul/ kl/of]hgfsf] lgdf{0f sfo{ 
r':t ultdf cuf8L a9]sf] 5 / o;} cf=j= @)*#÷)*$ leq} lgdf{0f ;DkGg ul/ Joj;flos pTkfbg z'? 
ug{] of]hgfsf] ;fy sfo{ cuf8L a9fOPsf] 5 . To;}u/L vf]6fË lhNnf lbUt]n ?kfsf]6 d'emjfu9L           
uf=kf= df d'Vo ;+/rgf /xg] ul/ tfkvf]nf hnljB't cfof]hgf -*=&@$ d]=jf=_ sf] ;j{]If0f cg'dlt kq k|fKt         
eO;s]sf] 5 / xfn Feasibility cWoogsf] r/0fdf /x]sf] pQm cfof]hgfsf] klg cfjZos ;a} k|s[ofx? 
k'/f ul/ cuf8L a9fpg] of]hgf ;d]t /x]sf] 5 .

cf=a= @)*@÷)*# sf] cflZjg dlxgf ;Dd ;fbL{ vf]nf h=lj= cfof]hgf -$ d]=jf=_sf] dfl;s pTkfbg o; 

k|sf/ /x]sf] 5 .

qm=; dlxgf sG6«fofS6 O{ghL{ (Kwh) pTkfbg o'lg6 (Kwh)

! >fj0f @)*! @,&(*,(@* @,&*!,%$)

@ efb« @,&(*,(@* @,&(*,*&)

# cflZjg @,&(*,(@* @,&^@,$*)
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sDkgLsf] efjL of]hgf M
sDkgLsf] Joj;fo lj:tfsfnflu tklzn jdf]lhdsf] efjL of]hgf /x]sf 5g\ .

	sDkgLsf] r'Qmf k'FhL a[l4 ug{sf nflu xsk|b z]o/ hf/L u/L yk k"FhLsf] Joj:yf ul/ k||ltkmnd"vL 
cfof]hgfx?sf] ljsf; tyf lgdf{0f ug]{ / sDkgLnfO{ a9L k|ltkmnd'lv agfpg] .

	sDkgLsf] p2]Zo cg'?k ;fgf tyf demf}nf hnljB't cfof]hgfx? k|j{wg ug]{ tyf gofF cfof]hgfsf 
nflu C0f tyf :jk"FhL nufgLsf] sfo{ ug]{ . h; cGtu{t xfn ck/;fbL{ tyf tfkvf]nf hnljB't 
cfof]hgf cuf8L a9fpg] sfo{qmd /x]sf],

	sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/nfO{ lgoldt ?kdf j[l4 ub}{ z]o/wgLx?nfO{ oyf]lrt k|ltkmn lbg k|oTgzLn 
/xg] .

	;+:yfut ;'zf;g, kf/blz{tf, hjfkmb]lxtf k|j{4gsf nflu cfjZos lglt kl/dfh{g tyf ;f]sf] 
sfof{Gjog ug]{ ;DaGwL s[ofsnfkx?nfO{ lg/Gt/tf lbg] .

	hf]lvd Go'gLs/0fsf] nfuL ;Dea eP;Ddsf pkfox? cjnDjg u/L hf]lvd Go'gLs/0f ;DalGw 
sfo{ ug]{ .

	;Defjgf /x]sf cGo cfof]hgfsf] yk cWoog tyf cg';Gwfg tyf nufgL ;DaGwL sfo{ cufl8 
a9fpg] . 

-3_ sDkgLsf] cf}Bf]lus jf Jofj;flos ;DaGw M
o; sDkgLn] ;a} ;/sf/L lgsfox?, ;+3 ;+:yf, z]o/wlg dxfg'efjx? nufot cGo ;/f]sf/jfnf lgsfo 
tyf AolQmx? ;Fu kf/bzL{ Pjd\ ;'dw'/ ;DaGw sfod /fVb} cfPsf] 5 . sDkgLn] g]kfn ;/sf/sf 
ljleGg lgsfox¿ h:t} laB't lgodg cfof]u, ljB't ljsf; ljefu, g]kfn laB't k|flws/0f, pBf]u laefu, 
sDkgL /lhi6f/sf] sfof{no, cfGtl/s /fhZj sfof{no, ag ljefu, zfGtL ;'/Iffsf cFux? tyf g]kfn 
;/sf/sf ljleGg dGqfnox?, a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx¿, ladf sDkgL, g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{, g]kfn :6s 
PS;r]Gh ln=,l;l8Pl; P08 lSnol/Ë lnld6]8, tyf cGo ;a} ;/f]sf/jfnfx? ;+u ;'dw'/ ;DaGw sfod 
/fVb} Aoj;fo ;~rfng ub} cfPsf] 5 . ;fy} sDkgLn] hnljB't If]qdf s]–s;/L nufgL a9fpg / j9L 
k|ltkmn d'vL jgfpg ;lsG5 eGg] ljifodf laleGg ;+3 ;+:yf ;+usf] 5nkmnnfO{ lg/Gt/tf lbPsf] 5 . 
/ Joj;flos ?kdf o; sDkgLsf] pQm kl/of]hgfaf6 pTkflbt ljB't g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0fnfO{ ljqmL 
ug{] ul/Psf] 5 .

-ª_ ;~rfns ;ldltdf ePsf] x]/km]/ / ;f]sf] sf/0f M
;+rfns ;ldltdf ;+rfns >L lji0f' axfb'/ tfdfËn] kl/jfl/s sf/0fn] /flhgfdf lbg' eO{ l/Qm x'g uPsf] 
;+rfns ;ldlt ;b:o kbdf >L zlzw/ cof{nnfO{ lgo'Qm ul/Psf] .

-r_ sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/nfO{ c;/ ug]{ d'Vo s'/fx? M

sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/nfO{ c;/ kfg]{ d'Vo s'/fx? b]xfo cg';f/ 5g\ .
	;+rfngdf /x]sf] hnljB't cfof]hgfn] k|fljlws tyf jftfj/l0fo k|efjsf] sf/0fn] ubf{ k"0f{ Ifdtfdf 

pTkfbg ug{ g;Sbf÷gkfpFbf cfDbfgLsf] ;|f]tdf kg{ ;Sg] ;Defljt gsf/fTds c;/ . 
	ylkPsf cfof]hgfx? ljsf;, lgdf{0f tyf ;DkGg x'g l9nfO{ ePdf nfut j[l4af6 x'g ;Sg]] 

hf]lvd .
	emGeml6nf] sfg"gL k|lqmofx?sf sf/0f Ohfhtx? k|fKt ubf{ l9nfO{ x'g hfg] sf/0faf6 cfof]hgf 
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lgdf{0f sfo{df x'g ;Sg] c;/ .
	g]kfn ;/sf/sf] ljlQo gLlt tyf cGo gLltx? kl/jt{gaf6 >[hgf x'g ;Sg] hf]lvdx?n] ubf{ 

C0f k|jfx / Jofhb/sf] ptf/ r9fajf6 x'g ;Sg] hf]lvd .
	xfn ;~rfngdf /x]sf cfof]hgf lxpFbsf] ;dodf k"0f{ Ifdtfdf ;~rfngdf ug{ gkfpFbf pTkfbgdf 

sld x'g] hf]lvd .
	b]zsf] jt{dfg cfly{s tyf df}lb«s cj:yfdf b]lvg ;Sg] nufgLof]Uo kF"hLsf] cefj tyf cl:y/ 

t/ntfsf]] sf/0fn] ubf{ hnljB't If]qsf] ljsf;df kg{ ;Sg] jfwfhGo c;/ .
	cfof]hgfnfO{ cfjZos kg]{ 7'nf 7'nf d]l;g tyf kf6{k"hf{ -Plant, Machinery & Equipements_ x?sf 

nflu cfoftdf e/ kg{'kg]{ tyf lt d]l;gx? h8fg ug{sf nflu ljb]zL 7]s]bf/ cfk"lt{stf{s} e/ 
kg{'kg]{ cj:yfn] k/lge{/tf hGo c;/ .

	kl/jlt{t ljb]zL d'b|fx?sf] lta| ljlgdo b/ a[l4n] ubf{ cfoft ug{'kg{] j:t' tyf ;]jfsf] d'Nodf 
ck|Tofl;t lx;fan] a[l4 x'g] hf]lvd .

;Defljt hf]lvdx?nfO{ Go"lgs/0f ug{ Aoj:yfkgsf] wf/0ff M 

;Defljt hf]lvdx?nfO{ Go"gLs/0f ug{ Joj:yfkgn] cfjZos cWoog tyf k/fdz{ u/L ljleGg gLlt, lgod 

tyf sfo{ljlwx? tof/ u/L nfu" ug{sf lgldQ cfjZos k|lqmofx? ;'? ul/Psf] 5 . nufgLsf] k|:tfj 

pk/ afXo lj1x?, Joj:yfkgsf kbflwsf/Lx? tyf ;~rfns ;ldlt u/L ljleGg kIfx?af6 k|:tfj;Fu 

;DalGwt k|fljlws kIf, ljQLo kIf, sfg"gL kIf tyf Joj:yfkg kIfx?sf] cfjZos cWoog, ljZn]if0f 

tyf cg';Gwfg u/]/ dfq nufgLsf] lg0f{o lng] k|s[of nfu" ul/Psf] 5 . ljBdfg hf]lvd klxrfg tyf 

Joj:yfkg ;DaGwdf pko'Qm k|0ffnLsf] ljsf; ug]{, Joj;flos ultljlwdf lglxt hf]lvdsf] klxrfg u/L 

To;sf] Joj:yfkgsf] cfjZos /0fgLlt tof/ ug]{, hf]lvdsf] cf+sng, d"Nofª\sg, lgoGq0f tyf cg'udg 

;DaGwdf 5nkmn ug]{, sDkgLn] lng] hf]lvdsf] ljZn]if0f ug]{ nufot lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 hf/L ul/Psf 

gLlt lgb]{zgx?sf] cg'z/0f ug]{ nufot cGo ljleGg hf]lvd Go"lgs/0fsf pkfox? cjnDag ug]{ gLlt 

lnOPsf] 5 . o:t} k|efjsf/L cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL, gjLgtd k|ljlwsf] pkof]u, pko'Qm gLlt tyf 

lgodx?sf] lgdf{0f ug]{ / ;"rgf k|jfxsf] sfo{nfO{ kf/bzL{ / ;'b[9Ls/0f ub}{ n}hfg] gLlt sDkgLsf] /x]sf] 5 .

-5_ n]vfk/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v ePsf] eP ;f] pk/ ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|lts[of M

cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] n]vfk/LIf0f k|lta]bg ;lxt ;Dk"0f{ cfly{s ljj/0fx? o;} jflif{s k|ltj]bgsf ;fy 

oxfFx?nfO{ pknAw u/fO{Psf] 5 . pQm n]vfk/LIf0f k|lta]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v gePsf] s'/f hfgsf/L 

u/fpb5f} .

-h_ nfef+z af“8kmf”8 ug{ l;kmfl/; ul/Psf] /sd M

ljut cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ cGtu{t nfef+zsf] Joj:yf x'g g;s]sf] .

-em_ z]o/ hkmt ePsf] eP hkmt ePsf] z]o/ ;+Vof, To:tf] z]o/sf] cl°t d"No, To:tf] z]o/hkmt 
x'g'eGbf cufj} ;f]afkt sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] hDdf /sd / To:tf] z]o/ hkmt ePkl5 ;f] z]o/ laqmL 
u/L sDkgLn] k|fKt u/]sf] /sd tyf hkmt ePsf] z]o/afkt /sd lkmtf{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M 

o; cf=j=df s'g} klg z]o/ hkmt gePsf] . 
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-`_ ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL / o;sf] ;xfos sDkgLsf] sf/f]jf/sf] k|ult / ;f] cfly{s jif{sf] 
cGtdf /x]sf] l:yltsf] k'g/fjnf]sg M

o; sDkgLsf] s'g} ;xfos sDkgL g/x]sf] . 

-6_ sDkgL tyf To;sf] ;xfos sDkgLn] cfly{s jif{df ;DkGg u/]sf] k|d'v sf/f]jf/x? / ;f] cjlwdf 
sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/df cfPsf] s'g} dxTjk"0f{ kl/jt{g M

o; sDkgLsf] s'g} ;xfos sDkgL g/x]sf] .

-7_ ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx?n] sDkgLnfO{ pknAw u/fPsf] hfgsf/L M

s'g} hfgsf/L gu/fPsf] .

-8_ ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?n] lnPsf] z]o/sf] :jfldTjsf] ljj/0f 
/ sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/df lghx? ;+nUg /x]sf] eP ;f] ;DaGwdf lghx?af6 sDkgLn] k|fKt           
u/]sf] hfgsf/L M

cf=a= @)*!÷)*@ sf] cGt;Dddf o; sDkgLsf ;~rfns tyf kbflwsf/Lx?sf] z]o/ :jldTj lgDg adf]lhd 

/x]sf] / lghx? sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/df ;+nUg g/x]sf] .

qm= 
;=

Gffd, y/ kb z]o/ ;+Vof

! z/b s'df/ bfxfn cWoIf !,)@,$@$

@ xl/ k|;fb e§ ;~rfns $%,)()

# zlz w/ cof{n ;~rfns !*,^(^

$ dx]Zj/ bjf8L ;~rfns #!,@*%

% /dfdf]xg kf]v/]n ;~rfns -;j{–;fwf/0f_ @,&!*

^ ;'lzn clwsf/L ;~rfns -;j{–;fwf/0f_ @,&!*

& k|fKtL /fodfemL ;~rfns -:jtGq_ –

-9_ ljut cfly{s jif{df sDkgL;“u ;DalGwt ;Demf}tfx?df s'g} ;~rfns tyf lghsf] glhss]f   
gft]bf/sf] JolQmut :jfy{sf] af/]df pknAw u/fOPsf] hfgsf/Lsf] Joxf]/f M

;f] ;DalGw hfgsf/L gePsf] .

-0f_ sDkgLn] cfgf] z]o/ cfkm}n] vl/b u/]sf] eP To;/L cfgf] z]o/ vl/b ug'{sf] sf/0f, To:tf]       
z]o/sf] ;+Vof / cl°t d"No tyf To;/L z]o/ vl/b u/] jfkt sDkgLn] e'QmfgL u/]sf] /sd M

sDkgLn] cfgf] z]o/ cfkm}n] vl/b u/]sf] 5}g .

-t_ cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffln eP jf gePsf] / ePsf] eP ;f]sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f M

sDkgL P]g, @)^# df Joj:yf eP cg';f/ tLg ;b:oLo n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldlt u7g ul/Psf] 5 . lgoldt 

?kdf cfGtl/s n]vfkl/If0f tyf jfXo n]vfkl/If0f ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . k|rlnt sfg"g / lgodx?sf] clwgdf 

/lx sDkgLn] Aoj;flos sf/f]jf/ ub}{ cfO/x]sf] 5 . o;/L sDkgLsf] cfGt/Ls lgoGq0f k|0fflnnfO{ 

k|efjsf/L agfO{ ;'Aojl:yt ?kdf sf/f]jf/ ;~rfng ug{sf nflu ;~rfns ;ldlt k|lta4 /x]sf] 5 / 

;do ;dodf sDkgL Aoj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg dfkm{t To;sf] sfof{Gjog ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 .



d

11Annual Report 2081/082

Mandakini Hydropower Ltd.
dGbflsgL xfO8«f]kfj/ lnld6]8

-y_ ljut cfly{s jif{sf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{sf] ljj/0f M

cf= j= @)*!÷)*@ df Joj:yfkg tkm{sf] s'n vr{ /sd ?= &!,@@,&)! /x]sf] 5 .

-b_ n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox?sf] gfdfjnL, lghx?n] k|fKt u/]sf] kfl/>lds, eQf tyf ;'ljwf, ;f] 
;ldltn] u/]sf] sfd sf/jfxLsf] ljj/0f / ;f] ;ldltn] s'g} ;'emfj lbPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M

o; sDkgLsf] n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltsf ;b:ox? / gLhx?n] cf=j=@)*!÷)*@ df k|fKt u/]sf] eQf b]xfo 

adf]lhd /x]sf] 5 .

qm=;= gfd kb a}7s ;+Vof
cf=j=@)*!.)*@ Dff k|fKt u/]sf] a}7s 

eQf -?=_

! dx]Zj/ bjf8L ;+of]hs $ @),)))

@ zlz w/ cof{n ;b:o $ !^,)))

;fy} P]gdf Joj:yf eP adf]lhd n]vfkl/If0f ;ldltsf] sfd, st{Jo / clwsf/ leq /x]/ Joj:yfkgnfO{ 

lgb]{zg lbg] / ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ cfjZos ;Nnfx, ;'emfa tyf l;kmfl/; ug]{ u/]sf] 5 . o;        

n]vfkl/If0f ;ldltn] cfGtl/s tyf afXo n]vfk/LIfsn] cf}NofPsf s}lkmotx? ;'wf/ ug{sf nflu 

Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg] u/]sf] 5 .

-w_ ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v,sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf  
gft]bf/ jf lgh ;+nUg /x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;+u7Lt ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg af“sL eP 
;f] s'/f M

gePsf] . 

-g_ ;~rfns, k|aGw ;~rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v tyf kbflwsf/Lx?nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] kfl/>lds, 
eQf tyf ;'ljwfsf] /sd M

cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df ;~rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s @^ k6s a;]sf] lyof] . a}7s eQf afkt cWoIf tyf 

;~rfnsx?nfO{ k|lt a}7s ?=%*,))) -cWoIfsf] ?=!),))) ;+rfns ? *,))) k|lt JolQm_ sf b/n] eQf 

lbg] ul/Psf] 5 .

Gffd kb a}7s eQf cGo ;'lawf
z/b s'df/ bfxfn cWoIf !,%^,))) &,)(,)))

x/L k|;fb e§ ;~rfns !,#@,))) –
zlz w/ cof{n ;~rfns ^$,))) –
dx]Zj/ bjf8L ;~rfns !,!^,))) –
/dfdf]xg kf]v/]n ;~rfns -;j{–;fwf/0f_ !,#@,))) –
;'lzn clwsf/L ;~rfns -;j{–;fwf/0f_ !$!,))) –
k|fKtL /fodfemL ;~rfns -:jtGq_ *,))) –
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-k_ z]o/wgLx?n] a'lemlng af“sL /x]sf] nfef+zsf] /sd M

?@),*!,%$% /x]sf] .

-km_ bkmf !$! adf]lhd ;DklQ vl/b jf laqmL u/]sf] ljj/0f M

cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df vl/b ul/Psf lb3{sflng ;Dd k|of]u x'g] k"FhLut ;fdfgsf] ljj/0f cfly{s ljj/0fdf 

pNn]v ul/Psf] 5 .

-a_ bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgLaLr ePsf] sf/f]af/sf] ljj/0f M

gePsf] .

-e_ P]g tyf k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd ;~rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg' kg]{ cGo s'g} s'/fM 

gePsf] .

-d_ cGo cfjZos s'/fx?M 

gePsf] . 

cGTodf,

cfgf] ljZjf; ;Nnfx ;'emfj tyf cledt4f/f sDkgLnfO{ cfhsf] o; cj:yf;Dd NofO{ k'¥ofpg ;xof]u 

ug'{ x'g] ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, g]kfn ;/sf/ phf{ dGqfno, jg dGqfno, ljB't lgodg cfof]u, 

ljB't ljsf; ljefu, jg ljefu, g]kfn ljB't k|flws/0f, pBf]u ljefu, sDkgL /lh:6f/sf] sfof{no, 

Pg=Pd=la a}+s ln= nufot cGo C0fbftf a}+sx? aLdf sDkgLx?, ljlQo tyf k|fljlws k/fdz{bftf, 

lgdf{0fsf] l8hfOg tyf ;'kl/j]If0f ul/lbg] k/fdz{bftf, sfg'gL ;Nnfxsf/, ;xof]uL :yfgLo afl;Gbf, 

/fhg}lts bn tyf sDkgLsf ;Dk'0f{ sd{rf/Lx? ;d]tnfO{ xflb{s wGojfb lbg rfxG5f} . wGojfb .	
								         	

z/b s'df/ bfxfn

cWoIf, ;+rfns ;ldlt   

dGbflsgL xfO8«f]kfj/ lnld6]8

;+rfns ;ldltaf6 :jLs[t

ldlt M @)*@÷)*÷@*
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MANDAKINI HYDROPOWER LTD. 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Opinion 
We have audited the financial statements of Mandakini Hydropower Ltd. (the ‘Company’) which 
comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at Ashadh 32, 2082, Statement of Profit or Loss, 
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies. 
 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the company as at Ashadh 32, 2082 and its financial performance and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs). 
 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs).  Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the company in accordance with 
the ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 

 
Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance 
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our audit opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. we have determined that there are no 
other key audit matters to communicate in our report. 
 
 

Information Other than Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
Management is responsible for the other information.  
 

The other information comprises the financial or non-financial information included in the annual 
report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual 
report is expected to be made available for our review after the date of this auditor’s report. 
 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

In connection with our audit of financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, we will consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the 
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
 

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we 
are required to request management and those charged with governance to correct the material 
misstatement. 
 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the financial 
statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in 
accordance with NFRSs, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error. 
 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or 
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
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Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements. 
 

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud 
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 
 

ii) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the company’s internal control. 

 

iii) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

iv) Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue 
as a going concern. 

 

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
On examination of the financial statements as aforesaid, we further report that:  
 ) We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 
  ) In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the company so far 

as it appears from our examination of such books of accounts; 
 

   ) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Income and Expenditure Statement and Statement of Changes 
in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of accounts. 
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 v) To the best of our information and according to explanation given to us and from our examination 
of the books of account of the company necessary for the purpose of our audit, we have not come 
across cases where the board of directors or any representative or any employee of the company 
have acted contrary to the provisions of laws relating to accounts or committed any 
misappropriation or caused any loss or damage to the company. 

 
 
 
 
FCA Anish Gyawali 
Partner 
G. & G. Associates, Chartered Accountants 
 
UDIN  : 260101CA01222ahVy4 
 

Place : Kathmandu 
Date : 2082-08-28 
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Particulars Note  As at 32nd Ashadh 2082  As at 31st Ashad 2081 
ASSETS

Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 11,031,951                                   6,923,750                                     
Intangible assets 5 708,444,998                                 732,579,480                                 
Intangible Assets Under Development 6 97,792,945                                   75,130,962                                   
Other Financial Assets -                                                -                                                
Investment 7 33,520,568                                   38,394,117                                   

Total Non-Current Assets 850,790,462                                 853,028,309                                 

Current assets
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8 11,788,750                                   60,597,692                                   
Other financial assets 9 121,260                                        171,260                                        

Investments 7.1 -                                                -                                                
Other current assets 10 71,714,456                                   22,920,566                                   
Inventories 11 304,436                                        304,436                                        
Advance Tax (net) 12 1,038,897                                     2,032,611                                     

Total current assets 84,967,799                                   86,026,566                                   

Total assets 935,758,261                                 939,054,875                                 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity
Equity share capital 13 646,767,085                                 615,968,700                                 
Other equity 14 45,835,946                                   37,035,350                                   

Total Equity 692,603,031                                 653,004,050                                 

Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 15 232,893,879                                 279,893,879                                 
Other financial liabilities 16 3,608,860                                     1,350,532                                     

Provisions
Deferred tax 12

Total Non-Current Liabilities 236,502,739                                 281,244,411                                 

Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 17 -                                                -                                                
Other financial liabilities 17 4,264,605                                     2,625,144                                     

Other current liabilities 18 2,387,887                                     2,181,270                                     

Total Current Liabilities 6,652,491                                     4,806,413                                     

Total Liabilities 243,155,230                                 286,050,824                                 

Total Equity and Liabilities 935,758,261                                 939,054,875                                 

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Place:  Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 2082/08/28

Mandakini Hydropower Limited
Statement of Financial Position

As at 32nd Ashad 2082 (16 July 2025)
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Note FY 2081-82 FY 2080-81

Revenue from generation of Electricity 19 109,176,145                       107,551,105                       
Less: Royalty Expenses 19 2,583,523                           2,550,679                           
Less: Project Expenses 22 9,960,837                           13,027,872                         

Gross Profit 96,631,785                         91,972,554                         

Construction Revenue
Revenue during construction phase 20 17,030,908                         1,726,888                           
Cost incurred during construction phase 20 (17,030,908)                       (1,726,888)                         

Total Construction Revenue -                                      -                                      

Other Income 21 9,586,411                           921,439                              
Finance Income 23 606,490                              7,023,025                           

Employee benefit expenses 24 1,740,193                           3,927,332                           
Depreciation 4 769,700                              656,039                              
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 5 28,963,386                         29,747,121                         
Administrative and other operating expenses 25 5,382,508                           3,572,897                           
Other Expenses 28 1,684,834                           

Finance Cost 26 23,455,745                         27,932,631                         
Total Expenses 61,996,366                         65,836,019                         

Total Profit before Tax 44,828,321                         34,080,999                         

Income Tax Expense
Current tax 2,203,777                           1,627,867                           
Deferred tax credit/charge

Profit from continuing operations 42,624,543                         32,453,132                         

Net Profit for the year 42,624,543                         32,453,132                         

Other comprehensive Income:
Items that will not be re-classified to profit or loss:
Re-measurement (losses) / gains on post employment defined benefit plans -                                      -                                      
Items that may be re-classified to profit or loss:

Other comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year,  net of tax (1,195,936)                         593,447                             

Total Comprehensive gain/(loss) for the year, net of tax 41,428,607                         33,046,579                         

Earnings per equity share of Rs. 100 each
      Basic Earnings per share - Rs. 27 6.59                                    5.27                                    
      Diluted Earnings per share - Rs. 27 -                                      5.27                                    

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.

Place:  Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 2082/08/28

Mandakini Hydropower Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 32nd Ashad 2082 (16th July 2025)
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Figures in NPR
Particulars  FY 2081-82  FY 2080-81

Profit for the year 41,281,607             32,950,579             
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 29,733,086             30,403,160             
Imapirment of Goodwill 1,684,834               
Gain From Sale of Tangible asset (793,379)                 -                          
Gain From Sale of Intangible asset -                          -                          
Share issue costs -                          
Tax Paid 993,714                  1,189,754               
Working capital adjustments:

(Increase) /decrease in Other Financial Assets 50,000                    231,531                  
(Increase )/decrease in Other Current Assets (48,793,890)            6,255,588               
Increase / (decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 3,897,789               (3,505,703)              
Increase / (decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 206,617                  (1,357,822)              

Cash generated from operations 28,260,378             66,167,086             

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 28,260,378             66,167,086             

(Increase)/decrease in Intangible assets under development (22,661,983)            (1,726,888)              
Acquisition of Property, plant and Equipment (5,634,521)              (166,857.00)            
Disposal Of Tangible Assets 1,550,000               
Acquisition of Intangible Assets (7,714,433)              (3,346,048)              
Disposal Of Intangible Assets 1,200,695               
(Increase)/ Decrease in Capital WIP -                          
(Increase)/decrease in Investments 4,873,549               61,605,883             

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (28,386,693)            56,366,090             

Additional borrowings (47,000,000)            (67,695,495)            
Dividend Tax Paid -                          
Dividend Paid (32,419,415)            (29,401,844)            
Change in reserve -                          50,000                    
Bonus Share certification charge (61,597)                   
Additional Capital from share holder 30,798,385             27,931,800             

NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (48,682,627)            (69,115,539)            

(48,808,942)            53,417,636             

60,597,692             7,180,056               

11,788,750             60,597,692             

Date: 2082/08/28
Place:  Kathmandu, Nepal

Mandakini Hydropower Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 32nd Ashad 2082 (16th July 2025)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

INCREASE/(DECREASE)  IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of Year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of Year
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Note 6
Intangible Assets under development
Service Concession Agreement 
I. Upper Sardi Project
Particulars  As at 32nd Ashad 

2082 
 As at 31st Ashad 

2081 
A
s 
 

Access Road (Upper Sardi ) 13,862,568                                                               13,862,568                        
Business Promotion Expenses 277,081                                                                    129,981                             
Cepad Hydro Consultants P.Ltd 3,000,000                                                                 -                                    
Connection Agreement 77,000                                                                      77,000                               
Consultancy Fee- Upper Sardi 7,307,688                                                                 7,307,688                          
Detail Project Report 700,600                                                                    -                                    
Detail Topographical Survey 1,259,950                                                                 -                                    
Due Diligence Study-Upper Sardi 734,500                                                                    -                                    
Environmental Mitigation Expenses 3,867,500                                                                 2,367,500                          
Environment Impact Assesment-Upper Sardi 3,053,900                                                                 2,796,260                          
Feasibility Study-Upper Sardi 3,331,675                                                                 3,331,675                          
Meeting Allowance 497,020                                                                    193,020                             
Fuel Exp-Upper Sardi 858,613                                                                    -                                    
House Rent-Upper Sardi 96,000                                                                      -                                    
Laptop-Upper Sardi 109,000                                                                    -                                    
Local Conveyance-Upper Sardi 1,700                                                                        -                                    
Local Rates & Taxes-Upper Sardi 30,000                                                                      -                                    
Lodging and Fooding-Upper Sardi 98,705                                                                      -                                    
Office Exp-Upper Sardi 3,830                                                                        -                                    
Partation- Upper Sardi 24,500                                                                      -                                    
PPA Application Fee-Upper Sardi 277,500                                                                    277,500                             
Preliminary Expenses ( Upper Sardi) 6,031,740                                                                 5,531,740                          
Printing and Stationary-Upper Sardi 15,289                                                                      -                                    
Refreshment Exp- Upper Sardi 98,132                                                                      -                                    
Registration Fee Upper Sardi 20,000                                                                      20,000                               
Revoliving Chair- Upper Sardi 15,000                                                                      -                                    
Site Expenses-Upper Sardi 113,260                                                                    -                                    
Social Security Fund Exp-Admin 203,220                                                                    -                                    
TADA Expenses- Upper Sardi 172,710                                                                    161,710                             
Transmission Line (Upper Sardi) 33,786,540                                                               31,855,880                        
Transportation Charge-Upper Sardi 8,000                                                                        -                                    
Upper Sardikhola-Gauge Installation Exp 22,000                                                                      22,000                               
Travelling Exp -Upper Sardi 200,658                                                                    -                                    
Detail Engineering Design 4,143,823                                                                 4,143,823                          
Salary Exp-Upper Sardi 6,803,168                                                                 2,845,000                          
Utilities Exp-Upper Sardi 47,337                                                                      -                                    
Advertisement Exp-Upper Sardi 419,963                                                                    202,367                             
Misc Exp-Upper Sardi 5,300                                                                        5,250                                 
TL Licence Fee Exp 270,000                                                                    
TL License Upgrading Charge 316,400                                                                    
Total 92,161,870                                                               75,130,962                        

2 Tap Khola Project
Particulars  As at 32nd Ashad 

2082 
 As at 31st Ashad 

2081 

Tap Khola Project 5,631,075                                                                 -                                    
Total 5,631,075                                                                 -                                    

Grand Total 97,792,945                                                               75,130,962                        

Mandakini Hydropower Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended on 32nd Ashad 2082

b) The Company is a developer of hydro electricity. The company is yet to start generation of hydro electricity from Upper Sardi Project and currently it is at
initial stage of construction phase. Revenue and margin from the contruction phase cannot be estimated reliably. Hence, profit margin on contruction phase is
assumed to be 0% and accordingly revenue.
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Figures in NPR

Note No. 7
Investments

Particulars

Darchula Power P. Ltd -                               3,600,000.00                   
Dolphin Power P. Ltd 9,000,000                     9,000,000.00                   
Investment in Shares (Availing PMS Facility) 24,520,568                   25,794,117                      

33,520,568                   38,394,117                      

Note No. 8

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars

Balance with Banks
Global IME Bank(BoK) 10,124                          2,734,865                        
Kumari Bank Ltd. 120,228                        139,552                     
NMB Bank 623,116                        -                            
NMB BANK (Income Account) 8,618,517                     57,599,990                
Global IME Bank 2,402,730                     122,370                     

Cash in hand
Cash-in-hand 14,035                          915                            

11,788,750                   60,597,692                      

Note No. 9
Other financial assets

Particulars

Security Deposit
House Rent Deposit -                               45,000                          
Nepal Telecom 5,000                           5,000                            
P.O. Box Deposit 2,760                           2,760                            
Water Deposit 1,000                           1,000                            

Margin money account
Bank Margin 15,000                          
Cash Margin 112,500                        102,500                        
TT Advance Payment -                               

121,260                        171,260                           

 As at 31st Ashad 2081 

Mandakini Hydropower Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended on 32nd Ashad 2082

 As at 31st Ashad 2081 

 As at 31st Ashad 2081 

 As at 32nd Ashad 
2082 

 As at 32nd Ashad 
2082 

 As at 32nd Ashad 
2082 
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Note No. 10
Other current assets

Particulars

Loan and Advances                      4,404,116                                 8,084 

Jitendra Dahal(Advance ) 31,239                      8,084                            
Adyanta Engineering P.Ltd 9,200                        
Narayan Bhandari(Adv) 12,000                      
Nepal Money Exchanger 27,913                      
Sushil Adhikari(Advance ) 1,629,240                 
TT#NMB11AP81822026 2,694,524                 

   Mobilization Advance 21,121,398                -                               
Trade and Other Receivable 4,876,759                     4,790,359                        

House Rent Receivable (HI) 259,200                        172,800                        
Lal Krishna KC(EIL) 4,617,559                     4,617,559                     
Other Receivable(related to Bonus Issue) 47                                 
Receivable from GBIME Capital 427,917                        316,401                        

Prepaid Insurance 2,524,819                     2,742,128                     
Prepaid Expenses 70,281                          64,670                          
Nepal Electricity Authority 18,289,166                   14,998,877                   
Advance for Investment pending allottment(Spark Hydro) 20,000,000                   

71,714,456                   22,920,566                      

Other current assets are not financial assets and are expected to be settled as per companys operating cycle.

Note No. 11
Inventories
Particulars

Inventories 304,436                        304,436                           

304,436                        304,436                           

Note No. 12
Advance Tax
Particulars

TDS Receivable 1,038,897                     2,032,611                        
Less: Impairment -                                   

1,038,897                     2,032,611                        

The entity has entered in to an agreement with Spark Hydro to invest upto 5% of the shares of Spark Hydro Limited 
and forwarded an advance amounting to 2cr as on Balance Sheet date. 

 As at 32nd Ashad 
2082 

 As at 32nd Ashad 
2082 

 As at 32nd Ashad 
2082 

 As at 31st Ashad 2081 

 As at 31st Ashad 2081 

 As at 31st Ashad 2081 
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Mandakini Hydropower Limited
Notes forming the part of Financial Statements

Figures in NRs.

Note no: 13
Equity share capital

 No. of Shares Amount  No. of Shares Amount

A. Equity Shares
Authorised
6,500,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each 6,500,000                         650,000,000           6,500,000                    650,000,000         
Issued
6,467,671 Ordinary shares of Rs 100 Each 6,467,670.85                    646,767,085           6,159,687                    615,968,700         
Paid up
Equity Shares  of Rs. 100 each with voting rights 6,467,670.85                    646,767,085                                6,159,687 615,968,700         
Less: Calls in arrear

6,467,670.85                    646,767,085           6,159,687.00               615,968,700.00    
Share capital includes fraction share alloted during issuance of bonus share.

B. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year

Balance as at the beginning of the year                     6,159,687.00                      5,880,369 
Changes during the year 307,983.85                       279,318                       

Balance as at the end of the year 6,467,670.85                    6,159,687                    

The company was incorporated with authorised captial of Rs. 650,000,000.00 divided in 6,500,000.00 shares of Rs. 100.00 each. 

Details of shareholding more than 0.5%
Name Public/ Promoter Kitta Percentage
Hari Kumar Shrestha Public/ Promoter 177,960 2.75%
Bishnu Bahadur Tamang Public/ Promoter 136,856 2.12%
Krishna Prasad Simkhada Public/ Promoter 131,639                  2.04%
Dev Bahadur Gurung Public/ Promoter 111,607 1.73%
Sharad Kumar Dahal Public/ Promoter 102,425 1.58%
Niroj Kumar Thapaliya Public/ Promoter 93,631   1.45%
Rajendra Giri Public/ Promoter 91,477   1.41%
Bishnu Prasad Bhandari Public/ Promoter 82,560   1.28%
Ram Lal Shrestha Public/ Promoter 80,081   1.24%
Tirtha Raj Gurung Public/ Promoter 77,813   1.20%
Suresh Kumar Upadhaya Public/ Promoter 74,097   1.15%
Keshav Tuladhar  Public/ Promoter 70,392                    1.09%
Nabin Siwa Public/ Promoter 58,083                    0.90%
Dhan Man Shrestha Public/ Promoter 51,760                    0.80%
Ishwor Kumar Shrestha Public/ Promoter 51,037                    0.79%
Dhiraj Gurung Public/ Promoter 49,906                    0.77%
Hari Prasad Bhatta Public/ Promoter 45,090                    0.70%
Dal Bahadur Sherchan Public/ Promoter 42,653                    0.66%
Tul Bahadur Pun Public/ Promoter 37,601                    0.58%
Nagendra Kumar Shrestha Public/ Promoter 36,086                    0.56%
Ram Prasad Khanal Public/ Promoter 34,868                    0.54%
Buddhi Man Shrestha Public/ Promoter 34,756                    0.54%
Ram Hari Sharma Public/ Promoter 34,713                    0.54%
Gayatri Bohra Public/ Promoter 33,371                    0.52%

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of NPR 100 per share. Every member holding equity shares therein shall have 
voting rights in proportion to the member’s share of the paid up equity share capital. The Company declares and pays dividend in Nepalese rupees. 
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of 
liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the equity shareholders.

Particulars As at 32nd Ashad 2082

As at 32nd Ashad 2082
No.of Shares

Particulars

As at 31st Ashad 2081

As at 31st Ashad 2081
No.of Shares
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Note No. 14
Other equity

 Corporate Social 
Responsibility Fund 

Retained 
earnings

Fair Value Reserve Total 

Balance at 31st Ashadh 2080 455,281                        32,981,335          -                           33,436,615        
Receipt of convertible loan
Appropriation of Profit for the year 380,466                        32,716,113          -                           33,096,579        
Dividend to shareholder (29,401,844)         (29,401,844)       
Share issue cost during the year -                     
Utlization for the year (96,000)                        (96,000)              

Balance at 31st Ashad 2081 739,747                        36,295,604          -                           37,035,350        

Balance at 31st Ashadh 2081 739,747                        36,295,604          -                           37,035,350        
Receipt of convertible loan
Appropriation of Profit for the year 426,245.43                   41,002,362          41,428,607        
Other Comprehensive Income 
Dividend to share holder (32,419,415)         (32,419,415)       
Bonus Share Certification Charge (61,597)                (61,597)              
Share issue cost during the year -                     
Utlization for the year (147,000)                      (147,000)            

Balance at 32nd Ashad 2082 1,018,992                     44,816,954          -                           45,835,946        
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Note No. 15
Borrowings

Particulars  As at 32nd Ashad 2082  As at 31st Ashad 2081 

Measured at amortised cost
Secured Borrowings from Banks
Term loan from banks 232,893,879                     279,893,879                      

232,893,879                     279,893,879                      

Note No. 16
Other Financial Liabilities

Particulars  As at 32nd Ashad 2082  As at 31st Ashad 2081 
Lease Liabilities 3,608,860                         1,350,532                          

3,608,860                         1,350,532                          

Notes forming the part of Financial Statements

1) The company has entered into consortium arrangement for term loan with NMB Bank Ltd as Lead Bank,Global
Ime Bank Ltd and Kumari Bank Ltd as Participating Banks/Financial Institutions for construction and operation of
the project

2) Term Loans from Banks are Secured :
i) By way of Mortgage/Pledge/hypothecation over the entire present and future fixed assest created with or without
financing owned by the MHL for the project on pari-passu basis in favour of participating Banks/Fis
ii) Entire current assets of the project including receivables from Nepal Electricity Authority, compensation paid
etc. to the consortium on pari-passu basis
iii) Assignment of PPA
iv) Charge on General License in favour of participating Bank
v) Corporate Guarantee of MHL
vi) Pledge of Entire shares owned by the promoters including institutional promoter of MHL
vii) All Guarantee  for which MHL is beneficiary
viii) Promissory Notes
ix) Loan Dead

2) Short term loan includes bridge gap loan provided by the lead bank within the terms agreed in above consortium
loan arrangement.
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Note No. 17
Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at 32nd Ashad 2082  As at 31st Ashad 2081 

 Current  Current 

Audit Fee Payable 223,000                            223,000                             
Retention money Payable 306,161                             
Salary Payable 66,149                              69,030                               
Social Security Fund Payable 92,599                              84,153                               
Staff Bonus Payable 914,863                            695,531                             
Electricity Payable 28,661                              1,114                                 
House Rent Payable 285,612                            49,500                               
Meeting Allowance Payable 109,650                            
waste Management wages payable 3,600                                
Wages Payable 3,465                                 

Trade Payable 2,540,471                         1,193,190                          
C.G. Auto Workshop -                                    31,611                               
K.R.P. & Company 133,800                            66,900                               
Reliable Builders & Construction 5,763                                5,763                                 
Nepal Money Exchanger -                                    56                                      
GBIME Capital 2,760                                2,760                                 
Thapa Law Firm Company -                                    150,875                             
TPN (EIL) 611,225                            611,225                             
Ad Crew Media P.Ltd 7,626                                -                                     
Citizen Investment Trust 380,000                            -                                     
Construction Enterpreneur's Fund(Civil) 260,990                            -                                     
Construction Ent. Fund (TL) 45,171                              -                                     
Debasthan Corporate Legal Consultancy P.Ltd. 220,770                            -                                     
Jolly Gorkha Adventure P.Ltd 26,365                              -                                     
Shree Krishna Mahadev Basic School 96,000                              -                                     
Machhapuchree Gaupalika 750,000                            
NEA Payable -                                    324,000                             

4,264,605                         2,625,144                          

Note No. 18

Other current liabilities
Particulars  As at 32nd Ashad 2082  As at 31st Ashad 2081 

 Current  Current 

Income Tax Payable 2,203,777                         1,627,867                          
Withholding tax payable 184,109                            553,402                             

2,387,887                         2,181,270                          
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Note No. 19  FY 2081-82  FY 2080-81 
Revenue
Revenue from Service Concession arrangement (Operation) 109,176,145              107,551,105              

109,176,145              107,551,105              
Note No. 19
Royalty Expenses
Particulars  FY 2081-82  FY 2080-81 
Capacity Royalty 400,000                     400,000                     
Revenue Royalty 2,183,523                  2,150,679                  

2,583,523                  2,550,679                  

Note No. 20
Construction Revenue

 FY 2081-82  FY 2080-81 
Revenue from Service Concession arrangement (Construction) 17,030,908                1,726,888                  
Revenue from Service Concession arrangement (Construction) (17,030,908)               (1,726,888)                 

-                             -                             

Note No. 21
Other Income  FY 2081-82  FY 2080-81 
Gain on sales of Automobiles 793,379                     -                             
Rental Income 96,000                       96,000                       
Profit on lease 149,837                     
Dividend Income 167,576                     283,912                     
Miscellaneous Income 8,208,619                  541,527                     
Bid / RFP Income 171,000                     

9,586,411                  921,439                     
Other income are incidental income that arise during operation of the company.

Note No. 23
Finance Income

 FY 2081-82  FY 2080-81 
Interest income 606,490                     7,023,025                  

606,490                     7,023,025                  

Interest income from financial assets that are particularly held for cash management purpose are included in finance income

Mandakini Hydropower Limited
Notes forming the part of Financial Statements

The company is in intial phase of development of Upper Sardi hydropower project. Hence, revenue from service concession 
agrrangement attributable to construction is recognised to the extent of cost incurred.
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Note No. 22
Project Expense
Particulars  FY 2081-82  FY 2080-81 
Insurance 2,939,739                  2,469,725                  
Back Feed Expenses 19,548                       17,172                       
CIB fee -                             5,950                         
Communication Expense 7,200                         18,200                       
Environmental Monitoring Expenses -                             621,500                     
Exim Code Expenses 1,000                         1,000                         
Internet Expenses 30,082                       56,515                       
Lodging & Fooding Expenses -                             247,990                     
Meeting Allowance 569,000                     623,000                     
Parking Expenses 140                             -                             
Petrol and oil 225,885                     471,125                     
Newspaper Subscription -                             2,796                         
Printing and Stationery 12,485                       11,400                       
Site Allowance 1,988,588                  2,365,553                  
Project Salary Expenses 2,736,360                  2,686,185                  
Festival Expenses 72,072                       57,818                       
Registration Expenses 150,000                     150,000                     
Repair & Maintenance 12,942                       131,801                     
Service Charge 40,680                       -                             
Site Expenses 62,259                       72,874                       
Site Maintainance Expenses 153,804                     517,656                     
Social Security Fund-Project 496,272                     489,237                     
TADA Expenses -                             372,000                     
Television Renewal Charge -                             6,300                         
Transportation Expenses 10,648                       18,308                       
Travelling Expenses -                             349,160                     
Utilities 37,746                       154,005                     
Vehicle Renewal Expenses 55,700                       55,700                       
Vehicle Rent -                             84,500                       
Wages Expenses 290,904                     646,404                     
Advertisement 36,815                       -                             
Custom Clearing Charge EM 10,418                       -                             
Local Conveyance at site 300                             -                             
Medical expenes 250                             -                             
Other Operational Charges -                             324,000                     

9,960,837                  13,027,872                

Note No. 24
Employee benefit expenses
Particulars  FY 2081-82  FY 2080-81 
Bonus Expenses 914,863                     695,531                     
Festival Allowance 374,719                     565,547                     
Salary Expenses 450,611                     2,471,370                  
Social Security Fund-Admin 194,884                     

1,740,193                  3,927,332                  
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Note No.25
Administrative and other operating expenses

Particulars  FY 2081-82  FY 2080-81 
Advertisement Expenses -                             
AGM Expenses 378,983                     128,142                     
Annual Listing Renewal Charge 250,000                     170,000                     
Annual Survelliance Fee 113,000                     113,000                     
Annual Membership Fee 34,000                       34,000                       
Application Fee(NEPSE) 15,000                       15,000                       
Bonus Share Reg. Fee(CDSC) 5,860                         4,782                         
Business Promotion Expenses 10,000                       -                             
Audit Fees 226,000                     226,000                     
Communication Charge 10,180                       10,000                       
Electricity & Fuel 152,831                     87,661                       
Electricity Exp-KTM 30,737                       22,960                       
Employee Welfare Expenses -                             10,000                       
Fine & Penalties -                             43,242                       
Office Rent Expenses 110,044                     -                             
Insurance 237,542                     186,204                     
Internal Audit Charge 271,200                     271,200                     
Internet Connection Charge -                             84,673                       
Internet Expenses 112,176                     47,200                       
Legal Fees 746,480                     701,730                     
Local Conveyance 15,315                       11,210                       
Local Rates & Taxes 9,400                         9,500                         
Notice Publication Expenses 132,074                     152,533                     
Advisory Charges -                             11,300                       
Miscellaneous Expenses 9,339                         -                             
Office Expenses 383,555                     55,770                       
Postage and Stamps 10,858                       6,875                         
Printing and Stationery 57,590                       40,480                       
Refreshment Expenses 143,350                     163,017                     
Registration Fee -                             135,864                     
Repair and Maintenance-Block C 185,168                     93,170                       
Waste Management 10,670                       42,420                       
Water Expenses 20,865                       22,140                       
Website Renewal Charge 10,000                       8,500                         
Impairment on Receivables -                             664,325                     
Company Registrar Expenses 415,000                     -                             
CIB fee 15,764                       -                             
Financial Projection Right Share 56,500                       -                             
Local Business Tax 9,000                         -                             
Lodging and Fooding 146,880                     -                             
Registrar to Share (RTS )Fee 50,000                       -                             
Registration Fee(SEBON) 20,000                       -                             
Repair and Maintenance - Office Equipment 5,300                         -                             
Right Share issue Charge 45,000                       -                             
Supervision Charges Sardi 1 383,070                     -                             
TADA Expenses 103,000                     -                             
Television renewal Charges 4,000                         -                             
Travelling Expenses 379,009                     -                             
Fines and Penalties 40,817                       
Valuation Expenses 16,950                       -                             
Impairment on Investments -                             

5,382,508                  3,572,897                  
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Note No. 26
Finance Cost

 FY 2081-82  FY 2080-81 
Bank charges and others 42,521                       216,501                     
Interest Expense on Lease 733,326                     154,900                     
Bank Interest 22,179,898                26,530,980                
Loan Management Fee 500,000                     500,000                     
OD Interest -                             530,250                     

23,455,745                27,932,631                

Note: 27
Earning Per Share  FY 2081-82  FY 2080-81 

Profit for the year 42,624,543                32,453,132                
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 6,467,671                  6,159,687.00             

Earnings Per Share (Rs.) - Basic 
(Face value of Rs. 100 per share) 

6.59                            5.27                            

Weighted average number of Equity shares (including dilutive 
shares) outstanding

                   6,467,671 6,159,687                  

Earnings Per Share (Rs.) - Diluted 
(Face value of Rs. 100 per share) 

5.27                            

Note 28 
Other Expenses  FY 2081-82  FY 2080-81 
Loss On Irrecoverable Advance Tax -                             
Impairment loss on Goodwill 1,684,834                  

1,684,834                  -                             
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Mandakini Hydropower Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 32nd Ashad 2082 

 
  

Page 1 of 13 
 

 

1. Entity Information and Financial Statements 
1.1. Reporting Entity 

Mandakini Hydropower Public Ltd. is a Public Limited Company registered for the 
development and operation of prospective hydropower projects in Nepal vide registration 
number 124294/070/071 at the Company Registrar’s Office. Initially, it was registered as a 
private limited company on 2064/07/26 and converted into a public limited company on 
2071/03/31. Currently, the Company is operating the Sardi Khola Hydroelectric Project 
located in Sardikhola VDC, Kaski having 4 MW capacity. The commercial operation of the 
Sardi Khola Hydroelectric Project was signed on 11 Kartik 2072 with Nepal Electricity 
Authority. The company has also undertaken to complete a new project: Upper Sardi Khola 
Hydropower project, having a capacity of 2.837 MW. The Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) 
related to this project has been made with Nepal Electricity Authority on Mangsir 13, 2080 
BS. 

The entity has been listed on the Nepal Stock Exchange on 1st Bhadra 2079 under the symbol 
MHL. 

 
1.2. Responsibility for Financial Statements 

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial 
Statements as per Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS). The accompanied financial 
statements of the company for the year ended Ashadh end 2082 were authorized for issue by 
the Board of Directors on 32nd Ashadh 2082 (16th July, 2025).  

2. Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts 
2.1. Basis of Preparation and Measurement 
i. Statement of Compliance 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable Nepal Financial 
Reporting Standards (NFRS) as issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal 
(ICAN) and relevant presentational requirements of the Company Act, 2063. 

 
ii. Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual and going concern basis. The 
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial 
statements. All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the 
Company’s normal operating cycle. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 
12-month periods for current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

 

The financial statements are presented in functional and presentation currency of the 
Company, i.e., Nepalese Rupee (“NPR”), which is the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates. 
 
iii. Basis of measurement 

The financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis under the historical cost 
convention. 
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iv. Materiality and Aggregation 

Each item that is similar in nature is presented separately if material. Items of dissimilar nature 
or function are presented separately unless they are immaterial as permitted by NAS 1. 

 
v. Going Concern 

The Management and Those Charged with Governance have assessed the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern and are satisfied about the ability to continue in business for 
the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties 
that may cast significant doubt upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
Therefore, the financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis. 

 
vi. Fair value measurement 

Various accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for both 
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The company recognises transfers between 
levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the change 
has occurred.  
 

2.2 Accounting estimates and judgements 

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that 
affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
income, and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
estimates are recognised prospectively. Management believes that the estimates used in the 
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. The significant estimates 
and judgments used are: 

Reference Note: Description 
 useful life of Property, Plant & Equipment for allocation of 

depreciable amount and review of impairment 
 useful life of intangible for allocation of depreciable amount, 

review of impairment 
 actuarial assumptions for the measurement of defined benefit 

obligations and insurance contract liabilities. 
 Measurement of current income tax liability 
 Review of impairment of receivables 
 Provisions and contingencies 
 

2.3 Changes in accounting estimates and errors: 

The effect of a change in an accounting estimate is recognized prospectively. A prior period 
error is corrected by retrospective restatement unless it is impracticable to determine the 
period–specific effects of an error. 
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2.4 Service concession arrangements 

The main objective of the company is to construct and operate Hydropower Projects as a 
developer after obtaining a separate license for each project from the government body. The 
license for developing these projects is conditional on the company being obliged to hand 
over the infrastructure to the government at the end of the period specified in the license. 
The license and other arrangements for operating the project are such that the price to be 
levied by the company for selling its power production and the consumer of the power 
produced by the company are regulated by a power purchase agreement. The management 
considers that these arrangements meet the following criteria of IFRIC 12 – Service 
Concession Arrangements: 

(a) the grantor controls or regulates what services the operator must provide with 
the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what prices: and 
(b) The grantor controls through ownership, beneficial entitlement, or otherwise any 
significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the 
arrangement 
 

These arrangements are accounted on the basis of mentioned below models depending on 
the nature of consideration and relevant contract law. 
 
Financial asset model: 
The Financial asset model is used when the Company, being an operator, has an unconditional 
contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the 
grantor for the construction services. An unconditional contractual right is established when 
the grantor contractually guarantees to pay the operator (a) a specific or determinable 
amount; (b) the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from the users of the public 
services and specified or determinable amounts. 

 
Intangible asset model: 
The intangible asset model is used to the extent that the operator receives a right (a license) 
to charge users of the public service. A right to charge users of a public service is not an 
unconditional right to receive cash because the amounts are contingent on the extent to 
which the public uses the services. Both types of arrangements may exist within a single 
contract to the extent that the grantor has given an unconditional guarantee of payment for 
the construction and the operation, i.e., considered as a financial asset, and to the extent that 
the operator has to rely on the public using the service in order to obtain payment, the 
operation has an intangible asset.  

The company accounts cost of construction of these projects under the Intangible asset 
model as per IFRIC 12. Construction of these projects shall be completed when the company 
completes testing as per the requirements of the PPA. Until then, all the incidental costs 
attributable to the construction of the project are shown as non-current assets, “Intangible 
Assets under Development.”   

 

2.5 Intangible Assets 
Recognition and Measurement 

Intangible assets are measured at their cost less any accumulated amortisation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. 
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Subsequent Expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits 
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.  

 
Amortization 

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated 
residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives and is generally 
recognised in profit or loss. The useful life of intangible assets is determined by considering 
both legal and economic factors in influencing the useful life of an intangible asset. 
Amortisation of intangible begins when the asset is available for use, i.e., when it is in the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management. 

The estimated useful lives for current and comparative periods are as follows: 

Software: General application software amortised over a period of 5 years on the Straight 
Line Method with no residual value. 

Service concession arrangements are accounted under the Intangible Assets 
model: Cost of project accounted as intangible assets under the intangible assets model, as 
per IFRIC 12, is amortized as per the project duration specified in the Power Purchase 
Agreement of respective projects. 

 
Impairment 

 The impairment loss for goodwill is measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the 
cash-generating unit (CGU), including goodwill, over its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount of a CGU is defined as the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal 
and its value in use, where value in use represents the present value of the future cash flows 
expected to be derived from the CGU. Any resulting impairment loss is recognized 
immediately in profit or loss. 

During the year, the Company performed an impairment assessment of the goodwill arising 
from earlier business combinations. Based on the assessment, management concluded that 
the expected synergies and economic benefits from the acquisition are no longer probable 
under current operating conditions. Accordingly, the recoverable amount of the related Cash 
Generating Unit was determined to be lower than its carrying amount. As a result, the entire 
goodwill amounting to NRs 1,684,834.00 has been fully impaired and charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss during the year. 

 

2.6 Property, plant, and equipment 

Property, plant, and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of 
the asset. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a 
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured 
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reliably. The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant, and 
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is 
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 
or disposal, any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the 
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognized. Gains and losses on disposals are 
determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. 

 
Recognition and Measurement 
Property, plant, and equipment are recognised if it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the asset will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can be measured 
reliably in accordance with NAS 16. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less accumulated depreciation, 
and any accumulated impairment losses. If significant parts of an item of property, plant, and 
equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major 
components) of property, plant, and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.  

Subsequent Expenditure 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits 
associated with the expenditure will flow to the company. All other repairs and maintenance 
are charged to profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. 

Depreciation 
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant, and equipment less 
their estimated residual values using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives 
and is generally recognized in profit or loss. Land is not depreciated.  

The estimated useful lives of property, plant, and equipment for current and comparative 
periods are as follows:  

Category of asset Estimated useful life Depreciation Rate 
Building 58-59 years 5% 
Office equipment 10-11 years 25% 
Furniture and fixtures 10-11 years 25% 
Vehicles 13 – 14 years 20% 
Other Assets 18 – 19 years 15% 

 
 
Useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date with prospective effect. 

Items less than Rs. 5,000 are charged to expenses. Assets that are purchased or constructed 
for the operation of the project as per the terms of the license described in note 2.4, being 
constructed by the company, are accounted as intangible assets as per IFRIC 12. 

 

2.7 Income tax  
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss 
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.  
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Current tax 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable on the taxable income or loss for the year 
and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount 
of current tax payable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid that reflects 
uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date.  

 
Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 
purposes. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the 
reversal of relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary 
differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, 
adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered. Deferred tax assets 
are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer 
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the 
probability of future taxable profits improves.  
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which 
they can be used.  
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary 
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date. 
 
The Company is in a tax holiday period, due to which no temporary differences arise on 
carrying amount and tax base, and hence no deferred tax assets/liabilities have been 
recognized. 
 

2.8 Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to 
the contract embodying the related financial instruments.  

 
i. Financial assets 
Classification and Measurement 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held 
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows, and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified 
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding. These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.  
The company assesses whether its financial assets meet this condition on the basis of the 
objective of the business model as determined by the key management personnel. 
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Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these 
financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial assets and the contractual 
terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company, in respect of 
equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures) which are not 
held for trading, has made an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income 
subsequent changes in the fair value of such equity instruments. Such an election is made by 
the Company on an instrument-by-instrument basis at the time of initial recognition of such 
equity investments. 
Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income is carried at fair value through the statement of profit and loss. Financial assets that 
are held for trading are measured at fair value through the statement of profit or loss. 
For financial assets maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying 
amounts approximate fair value due to the shorter maturity of these instruments.  
Classification of Financial Assets is made as per the requirements of NFRS 9. 
 

 
De-recognition of financial assets 
The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset, and the transfer 
qualifies for de-recognition under NFRS 9. 
On the derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying 
amounts measured at the date of derecognition and the consideration received is recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss. 

 
Effective interest method 
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial 
instrument and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments 
through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period. 
Income/ expense arising on financial instruments after applying an effective interest rate is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and is included in the “Other finance income” 
or “Other finance cost” line item.  
 

ii. Financial liabilities and equity instruments 
Classification as debt or equity 
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to 
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial 
liability and an equity instrument. 

 
Equity Instruments 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the 
Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs. 
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Financial Liabilities 
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method where the 
time value of money is significant. Interest-bearing bank loans, overdrafts, and issued debt are 
initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction 
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the 
borrowings in the statement of profit and loss. 
For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the 
carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments. 

 
Financial guarantee contracts 
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a 
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor 
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. 
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for 
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.  

 
De-recognition of financial liability 
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, 
cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

 
iii. Offsetting of Financial Asset and Financial Liability 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the Statement of 
Financial Position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised 
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle 
the liability simultaneously. 
 

2.9 Borrowing cost 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with 
the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, 
or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for 
its intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset until such time as the asset is 
substantially ready for the intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in 
the period in which they occur. 
 

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and 
demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to 
an insignificant risk of changes in value net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are 
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management. Cheques in hand pending 
realization or settlement are considered as cash equivalents. 
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2.11 Inventories 
Cost of inventories includes the cost of purchase, costs of conversion, and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Inventories of 
stores, spare parts, and loose tools are stated at the lower of weighted average cost and net 
realizable value. Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories in 
the ordinary course of business, less all estimated costs of completion and estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale. 
 

2.12 Revenue recognition  
i. Sale of Electricity 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefit will flow to the 
Company and that the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated rebates 
and other similar allowances. Revenue is recognised when substantial risks and rewards of 
ownership are transferred to the buyer under the terms of the contract. 

 
ii. Other Electricity Services  

Fees from other electricity services are accounted on an accrual basis as and when the right to 
receive arises.  

 
iii. Dividend Income  
Dividend income (net of withholding taxes) from investments is recognised when the 
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established (provided that it is probable that 
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured 
reliably). In the case of a stock dividend, only the number of shares is increased.  

 
iv. Interest Income  
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. 
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at 
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future 
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying 
amount on initial recognition. 
 

2.13 Provisions and contingencies  
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be 
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a 
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to 
a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss, net of any reimbursement. 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current 
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When 
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a 
finance cost. 

 



d

Annual Report 2081/08242    

Mandakini Hydropower Ltd.
dGbflsgL xfO8«f]kfj/ lnld6]8

Mandakini Hydropower Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 32nd Ashad 2082 

 
  

Page 10 of 13 
 

 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will 
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events 
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it 
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A 
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be 
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a 
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 
At the end of the reporting period, the company does not have a contingent liability that 
needs disclosure as per the adopted policy. 
 

2.14    Leases 
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease or contains a lease is based on the 
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the 
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets, and the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset. 
 
Finance Lease 
Agreements that transfer to counterparties all the risks and rewards incidental to the 
ownership of assets, but not necessarily legal title, are classified as finance leases. When the 
company is the lessor under a finance lease, the amounts due under the leases, after 
deduction of unearned interest income, are included in ‘Loans & receivables from other 
customers,’ as appropriate. Interest income receivable is recognized in ‘Net interest income’ 
over the periods of the leases so as to give a constant rate of return on the net investment in 
the leases. 
 
When the company is a lessee under finance leases, the leased assets are capitalized and 
included in ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’, and the corresponding liability to the lessor is 
included in ‘Other liabilities. A finance lease and its corresponding liability are recognized 
initially at the fair value of the asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. Finance charges payable are recognized in ‘Interest expenses’ over the period of 
the lease based on the interest rate implicit in the lease so as to give a constant rate of 
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
 
Operating Lease 
All other leases are classified as operating leases. When acting as lessor, the company includes 
the assets subject to operating leases in ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and accounts for 
them accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized to the extent that residual values are not 
fully recoverable and the carrying value of the assets is thereby impaired. Lease payments 
under an operating lease are recognized as an expense as per NFRS 16 under Depreciation 
charge on right of use of assets and interest expense on lease liability basis over the lease 
term. 
 

2.15 Employment Benefits 
The company has been enrolled in the Social Security Fund. The company does not have long-
term liability for its employees as timely deposits have been made on such fund. 
 

2.16 Staff bonus  
A 2% bonus on electricity income in line with the provisions of the Electricity Act 2049. 
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2.17 Corporate Social Responsibility Fund 
1% of the Net profit during the year is apportioned as the Corporate Social Responsibility 
fund as an appropriation of profit. 
 

2.18 Segment Reporting 

The Chief Executive Officer and functional managers of the Company have been identified as 
the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined by NFRS 8, Operating Segments. 
The CODM evaluates the Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an 
analysis of various performance indicators; however, the Company is primarily engaged in 
only one segment, viz., “Generation and Sale of electricity,” and most of the operations are in 
Nepal. Hence, the Company does not have any reportable Segments as per NFRS 8 
“Operating Segments”. 

 

2.19 Expenditure incurred in the running and maintenance of the property, 
plant, and equipment 

All expenditure incurred in the running and maintenance of the property, plant, and 
equipment in a state of efficiency has been charged to the Income Statement. 

 

2.20  Foreign currency transactions 
The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic 
environment in which it operates. The functional currency of the Company is Nepalese 
Rupee (NPR). In preparing the financial statements, the Company, transactions in currencies 
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) at the rates of exchange 
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary 
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. 
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not 
retranslated. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. 
 

2.21  Earnings per share 
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. 
The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 
shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects 
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

3. Additional Disclosures  

3.1 Risk management 
The Company’s business activities expose it to a variety of risks, i.e., interest rate risk, other 
price risk, technological risk, and foreign currency risk. The Company's Board and senior 
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management have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's 
risk management.  
The Board of Directors frames policies to address the risk in various areas, and senior 
management implements the policy framework. Measures to mitigate risk faced by the 
organization are summarized below: - 
 

a. Foreign Currency Risk  
The Company is subject to the risk that changes in foreign currency values impact the 
Company’s imports of inventories and property, plant, and equipment, and payments to 
Suppliers/contractors/subcontractors. These factors influence the cost of the project and the 
financing arrangement made by the company. 

 
b. Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with 
its financial liabilities. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will 
have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In 
doing this, management includes adequate liquid investment with certainty in its investment 
portfolio.  

c. Credit Risk  
Credit risk is the risk that the party to the transaction may be unable to settle a financial 
obligation due to the company. The company is not exposed to the risk of default by debtors. 
The company regularly assesses the creditworthiness of creditors and contractors before 
making advances.  

 
d. Operational Risk 

Operational risk arises from the conduct of employees and contractors. Contractor is 
engaged after a detailed assessment of their past performance and ability. The company has 
implemented policies for the management of its Human resources. Other operational risk 
emerges from operational procedures and processes. An internal control system is 
implemented for the operational procedures and processes. Technological risk is managed by 
appropriate measures.  

  

3.2   Capital Management 
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all 
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The Company 
manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to 
optimize returns to the shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is based on 
management’s judgment of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its 
strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in proportion to risk and 
manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk 
characteristics of the underlying assets.  

 
The Company’s aim is to translate profitable growth into superior cash generation through 
efficient capital management. The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital 
structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, creditor, and market 
confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company’s 
focus is on keeping a strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as a 
high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if required, without impacting the risk 
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profile of the Company. The Company will take appropriate steps in order to maintain, or if 
necessary, adjust, its capital structure. The management monitors the return on capital as 
well as the level of dividends to shareholders. The Company’s goal is to continue to be able 
to return excess liquidity to shareholders by continuing to distribute dividends in future 
periods. 

4.1 Financial Instruments 

4.1.1 Fair Value Hierarchy 
When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company uses observable market 
data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy 
based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows. 

 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities. 

 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable 
market data (unobservable inputs). 

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of 
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the 
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire 
measurement. 
 

4.2 Events after Balance Sheet Date 
There are no adjusting events after the balance sheet date that require adjustment in the 
financial statements. Also, there are no non-adjusting events that require disclosure. 
 

4.3 Related party transaction 
The following persons are identified as Related Parties. 

Key Management Personnel 
Key Management Personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for 
planning, directing, and controlling the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including 
any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity. The CEO and Directors are 
identified as Key Management Personnel (KMP), and the following are their details. 

Name Meeting Allowance Other Benefits 
 Mr.Sharad Kumar Dahal 156,000 7,38,000  

Mr.Hari Prasad Bhatta 132,000    15,000  
Mr.Maheshwor Dawadi 116,000   
Mr.Shashi Dhar Aryal   64,000   
Mr.Rama Mohan Pokhrel (Public Director) 132,000    15,000  
Mr.Sushil Adhikari (Public Director) 141,000   
Mrs.Prapti Rayamaji (Independent Director)    8,000   
Mr.Bishnu Bahadur Tamang (Former Director)   48,000   
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